












































Signature, Head of Charter School

Choh Ay

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date

Jul 29 2021

Thank you. .

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

Completed Nov 1 2021

Instructions

Regents, NYCDOE Buff: BOE-authoriz harter school

For the 2020-2021 school year, any academic or
organization goals that cannot be evaluated due to school
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Academic Goal 6

NA

19/44

cohort exceeded
the CSD or city
percent (whichever
is higher) on the
previous year's
ELA exam, the
school is expected
to demonstrate
growth
comparable to the
CSD in current
year

For each year of
the schools next
charter term, each
grade-level cohort
will demonstrate
growth with a
reduction by half
the gap between
the percent at or
above Level 3 on
the previous year's
NYS Math exam
(baselien) and the
CSD or citywide
percent (whichever
is higher) of
students proficient
at or above Level 3
on the current
State Math exam.
For schools in
which the number
of students scoring
above proficiency
in grade level
cohort exceeded
the CSD or city
percent (whichever
is higher) on the

NY State Math Test
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Unable to Assess

NA





















ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools must upload final, audited
financial statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2021. Upload the
independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as
one submission, combined into a .PDF file, ensuring that security features such as password protection
are turned off.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School - Financial Statements - June
30, 2021

Filename: Inwood Academy for Leadership Chart 4xXnvKm.pdf Size: 531.9 kB

Entry 4b - Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE)

Completed Nov 12021

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited
Financial Report Template” from the online portal or the website at 2020-2021 Charter School Annual
Report webpage. Upload the completed file in Excel format. Due November 1, 2021.

Education Corporations with more than one school should complete the Excel spreadsheet for
the Education Corporation as a whole, not for the individual schools. Please submit the same
Excel spreadsheet for each of the schools.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.

IAL _Audited Annual Financial Report FY21

Filename: IAL Audited Annual Financial Report FY21.xlsx Size: 73.0 kB

Entry 4c - Additional Financial Documents

Completed Nov 12021

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial
documents in this section by November 1, 2021. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an

explanation if not applicable or available. For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because
the school did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.”

Advisory and/or Management letter

Federal Single Audit

CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report

Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1]

Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations

W e

[1]1 Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per
school is $100,000.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
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Economically Disadvantaged

Application which is available in
multiple languages, advertise on
our website and social media
outlets

Direct Mail: IAL will sent a
bilingual (English/Spanish)
package to Vanguard toadvertise
to rising 5th and 9th

grade families ONLY. Packages
were sent to District 6 in
Manhattan and zip code 10463.
Door to Door: IAL has created a
role for an IAL Ambassador
whose responsible for handing
out over 5,000 application
packages throughout the
academic year.NYCHA housing
was a priority, in the Washington
Heights, Inwood, Kingsbridge and
University Heights sections to
focus on areas of high needs
such as student eligible for Free
and Reduced priced lunch, ELL
and SPED population.

Bus Ad and News Paper
advertisement to local areas
where we are aware of high
needs such as students eligible
for Free and reduced priced
lunch, ELL and SPED Population .

Web: IAL website pointed people
to NYC Charter Center’'s Common
Application which is available in
multiple languages, advertise on
our website and social media
outlets

Direct Mail: IAL will sent a
bilingual (English/Spanish)
package to Vanguard toadvertise
to rising 5th and 9th

grade families ONLY. Packages
were sent to District 6 in
Manhattan and zip code 10463.
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Application which is available in
multiple languages, advertise on
our website and social media
outlets

Direct Mail: IAL will sent a
bilingual (English/Spanish)
package to Vanguard toadvertise
to rising 5th and 9th

grade families ONLY. Packages
were sent to District 6 in
Manhattan and zip code 10463.
Door to Door: IAL has created a
role for an IAL Ambassador
whose responsible for handing
out over 5,000 application
packages throughout the
academic year.NYCHA housing
was a priority, in the Washington
Heights, Inwood, Kingsbridge and
University Heights sections to
focus on areas of high needs
such as student eligible for Free
and Reduced priced lunch, ELL
and SPED population.

Bus Ad and News Paper
advertisement to local areas
where we are aware of high
needs such as students eligible
for Free and reduced priced
lunch, ELL and SPED Population .

Web: IAL website pointed people
to NYC Charter Center’'s Common
Application which is available in
multiple languages, advertise on
our website and social media
outlets

Direct Mail: IAL will sent a
bilingual (English/Spanish)
package to Vanguard toadvertise
to rising 5th and 9th

grade families ONLY. Packages
were sent to District 6 in
Manhattan and zip code 10463.



English Language Learners

Students with Disabilities

Door to Door: IAL has created a
role for an IAL Ambassador
whose responsible for handing
out over 5,000 application
packages throughout the
academic year.NYCHA housing
was a priority, in the Washington
Heights, Inwood, Kingsbridge and
University Heights sections to
focus on areas of high needs
such as student eligible for Free
and Reduced priced lunch, ELL
and SPED population.

Bus Ad and News Paper
advertisement to local areas
where we are aware of high
needs such as students eligible
for Free and reduced priced
lunch, ELL and SPED Population .

Web: IAL website pointed people
to NYC Charter Center’'s Common
Application which is available in
multiple languages, advertise on
our website and social media
outlets

Direct Mail: IAL will sent a
bilingual (English/Spanish)
package to Vanguard toadvertise
to rising 5th and 9th

grade families ONLY. Packages
were sent to District 6 in
Manhattan and zip code 10463.
Door to Door: IAL has created a
role for an IAL Ambassador
whose responsible for handing
out over 5,000 application
packages throughout the
academic year.NYCHA housing
was a priority, in the Washington
Heights, Inwood, Kingsbridge and
University Heights sections to
focus on areas of high needs
such as student eligible for Free
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Door to Door: IAL has created a
role for an IAL Ambassador
whose responsible for handing
out over 5,000 application
packages throughout the
academic year.NYCHA housing
was a priority, in the Washington
Heights, Inwood, Kingsbridge and
University Heights sections to
focus on areas of high needs
such as student eligible for Free
and Reduced priced lunch, ELL
and SPED population.

Bus Ad and News Paper
advertisement to local areas
where we are aware of high
needs such as students eligible
for Free and reduced priced
lunch, ELL and SPED Population .

Web: IAL website pointed people
to NYC Charter Center’'s Common
Application which is available in
multiple languages, advertise on
our website and social media
outlets

Direct Mail: IAL will sent a
bilingual (English/Spanish)
package to Vanguard toadvertise
to rising 5th and 9th

grade families ONLY. Packages
were sent to District 6 in
Manhattan and zip code 10463.
Door to Door: IAL has created a
role for an IAL Ambassador
whose responsible for handing
out over 5,000 application
packages throughout the
academic year.NYCHA housing
was a priority, in the Washington
Heights, Inwood, Kingsbridge and
University Heights sections to
focus on areas of high needs
such as student eligible for Free
























CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

FTE Count

Total Category F 87

Thank you.

Entry 12 Organization Chart

Completed Aug 2 2021
Instructions
R ir f R nts, NYCDOE, and B lo BOE Authoriz harter Schools ONLY

Upload the 2020-2021 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart

IAL 2021

Filename: IAL 2021.22 Org Chart.pdf Size: 443.2 kB

Entry 13 School Calendar

Completed Aug 2 2021

Instructions for submitting School Calendar

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Given these uncertain and changing times, charter schools may or may not have a school calendar ready
to upload by the submission deadline this year of August 2, 2021. If the charter school has a tentative

calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, please submit with the August 2nd
submission. Charter schools will be able to upload an updated school calendar into the portal at any time
but no later than September 15, 2021.

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools
“... unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.”

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools are required to submit school calendars that clearly indicate
the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or
instructional days for each month.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.
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2021-22 draft calendar

Filename: 2021 22 draft calendar.pdf Size: 171.4 kB

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website

Completed Jul 29 2021

Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website.
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:

1.

»

IR

N

© ®

Most recently filed Annual Report (i.e., 2019-2020 Annual Report);

Most recent board meeting notice, documents to be discussed at the meeting (if any), and
webcast of Board meetings (if held virtually per Governor’s Executive Order);

Link to New York State School Report Card;

Lottery Notice announcing date of lottery;

Authorizer-approved DASA Policy;

District-wide safety plan and Authorizer-approved Discipline Policy (as per August 29,
2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo);

Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and

Subject matter list of FOIL records.

Link to School Reopening Plan

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website

School Name: Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

45/ 46



Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required

to submit item 5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its

website. Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:

1. Most Recent Annual Report (i.e., 2019-20)

2. Most recent board meeting notice, documents to
be discussed at the meeting (if any)

2a. Webcast of Board Meetings (per Governor's
Executive Order)

3. Link to NYS School Report Card

4. Lottery Notice announcing date of lottery

5. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy (For Regents,
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter
Schools ONLY):

6. District-wide Safety Plan

6a. Authorizer-Approved Discipline Policy (as per
August 29, 2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo)

7. Authorizer-Approved FOIL Policy

8. Subject matter list of FOIL records

Thank you.

Link to Documents

https://s3.amazonaws.com/inwoodacademy.media/

wp-content/uploads/2020/08/03224056/2019-20-
Annual-Report-Inwood-Academy-For-Leadership.pdf

https://inwoodacademy.org/about/team/board

https://inwoodacademy.org/about/team/board/

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php?
instid=800000067014&year=2020&createreport=
1&OverallStatus=1&section 1003=1&EMStatus=1
&HSStatus=1&HSgradrate=1

https://inwoodacademy.org/about/team/board/

https://inwoodacademy.org/about/team/board/

https://inwoodacademy.org/about/team/board

https://s3.amazonaws.com/inwoodacademy.media
wp-content/uploads/2019/09/03130713/2019-20-
MS-Family-Handbook English.pdf

https://inwoodacademy.org/about/team/board/

https://inwoodacademy.org/about/team/board/
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the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee.
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B D O Tel: 212-576-1400 600 Third Avenue, 3rd Floor
. Fax: 212-576-1414 New York, NY 10016

www.bdo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School
New York, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (the
“School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international
BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.


http:www.bdo.com

|IBDO

Other Matter

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements, and to certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements, or to the financial
statements themselves, and to other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2021, on
our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

POO sk LF

New York, NY
October 29, 2021



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash $ 8,231,320
Cash - restricted 75,263
Bond reserve funds - restricted cash 2,009,599
Grants receivable 829,397
Prepaid expenses and other assets 513,852
Right-of-use assets 41,099,940
Property and equipment, net 18,218,299
$ 70,977,670
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 258,130
Accrued interest expense 155,613
Bonds payable, net 17,234,579
Due to NYC Department of Education 419
Finance lease liabilities 37,867,281
Operating lease liabilities 3,971,935
59,487,957
NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 11,489,713
$ 70,977,670

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

OPERATING REVENUE AND SUPPORT
State and local per pupil operating revenue
Government grants and contracts
Contributions and other grants
Interest income

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Satisfaction of program restrictions

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
EXPENSES
Program services

Management and general
Fundraising

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Donations
Net assets released from restrictions
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

18,694,980
3,389,194
1,320,727

40,805

23,445,706

37,081

23,482,787

18,883,989
4,117,169
293,560

23,294,718

188,069

21,875
(37,081)

(15,206)

172,863

10,930,512

386,338

$

11,489,713

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from operating revenue and support
Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Cash received from interest income
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from refund of equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Right-of-use assets
Operating lease liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Repayment of bonds payable
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bond premium
Amortization of debt issuance costs

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest expense
Due to NYC Department of Education

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash and Cash - Restricted Consist of:

Cash

Cash - restricted
Bond reserve funds - restricted cash

Total

Cash paid for interest

$ 23,189,848
(21,735,639)
40,805

1,495,014

(654,240)
11,970

(642,270)

(42,024,524)
3,971,935
37,867,281

(300,000)

(485,308)
367,436
9,048,746

$ 10,316,182

$ 172,863

2,040,948
(3,670)
45,734

(237,347)
2,085

(523,043)

(2,975)
419

$ 1,495,014

$ 8,231,320
75,263
2,009,599

S 10316182

S 2805613

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit educational
corporation that was incorporated on December 15, 2009 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 56 of the
Educational Law of the State of New York. The School was granted a provisional charter on December 15, 2009,
valid for a term of five years and renewable by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York.
The charter of the School was renewed and extended to June 30, 2025.

The School opened its doors in the Fall of 2010 in Upper Manhattan with a rigorous academic program and a
highly structured and supportive school culture. The School is uniquely designed to empower students in Inwood
and Washington Heights to become agents for change through community-focused leadership, character
development and college preparedness.

The School operates classes for students in the fifth through twelfth grades.

The School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service (‘IRS”), is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (‘IRC”) as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and under the corresponding provisions of the New York State tax laws. The School has also been classified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for
deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Statement Presentation

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

The classification of the School's net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of the two classes of net assets —
with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions — be displayed in a statement of financial position and that the
amount of change in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities.

These classes are defined as follows:

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is subject
to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits reflecting the nature of the not-for-
profit entity, the environment in which it operates and the purposes specified in its articles of incorporation
or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-imposed restrictions may be temporary in nature, such as
stipulating that resources may be used only after a specified date or limited to specific programs or services.
Certain donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is not
subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both contributions not subject to
donor restrictions and exchange transactions, and are, therefore, available for general operations.

At June 30, 2021, the School had no assets with donor restrictions.
Cash - Restricted
The Board of Regents of the State University of New York requires an escrow account of $75,000 to be held

aside under the provisions of the School’s charter to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated
with a dissolution should it occur. As of June 30, 2021, the School had restricted cash of $75,263.



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable represent unconditional promises to give. Grants receivable that are expected to be collected
within one year and recorded at net realizable value are $829,397 at June 30, 2021. The School has determined
that no allowance for uncollectible accounts for grants receivable is necessary at June 30, 2021. Such estimate
is based on management’'s assessment of the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current economic
conditions and historical information.

Contributions

Transfers of cash or other assets or settlement of liabilities that are both voluntary and nonreciprocal are
recognized as contributions.

Contributions may either be conditional or unconditional. A contribution is considered conditional when the donor
imposes both a measurable barrier and a right of return. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue on
the date all donor-imposed barriers are overcome or explicitly waived by the donor. Barriers may include specific
and measurable outcomes, limitations on the performance of an activity and other stipulations related to the
contribution. A donor has a right of return of any assets transferred or a right of release of its obligation to transfer
any assets in the event the School fails to overcome one or more barriers. Assets received before the barrier is
overcome are accounted for as refundable advances.

Donor-imposed restrictions limit the use of the donated assets as to time or purpose restrictions.

Contributions subject to donor restrictions are recognized in changes in net assets with donor restrictions. When
a purpose restriction is satisfied or when a time restriction expires, the contribution is reported as net assets
released from restrictions and is recognized in changes in net assets without donor restrictions in the statement
of activities.

Revenue Recognition

Per-Pupil Revenue

The School recognizes revenues from per-pupil funding in the fiscal year in which the academic programs are
provided. Per-pupil revenue is billed and received based on the total number of full-time equivalent (“FTE”)
students and the basic charter school tuition rate for the school district of residence of the students attending the
School in any given fiscal year for general education and special education. The FTE is formula-driven and based
on the number of days the student has been with the School as a proportion of the number of days in the entire
school year (the calculation is done by using the New York State calculator online). The School’s total student
population includes general education and special education students. The School has determined that revenue
from its students has the same performance obligations, types of contract, and services rendered. As a result, the
student body is viewed as one customer base for revenue purposes. The School uses a portfolio approach to
account for per-pupil contracts as a collective group rather than recognizing revenue on an individual-contract
basis. The School believes that revenue recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue
that would have been recognized if an individual contract approach were used.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Per-Pupil Revenue (continued)

Per-pupil invoicing is managed on a bi-monthly basis to the funding source (local school district). Billing is a
function of student enroliment for the upcoming fiscal year, which is the basis for the first two invoices per-pupil
due June 1% and July 31%, which is a projection. Subsequent invoices are due bi-monthly. With the
implementation of an automated-invoicing process through a dedicated website, the submission of each invoice
is done online. After the year is complete, the School submits the FTE per-pupil reconciliation, listing every
student who attended any part of the year, and the FTE each represents. Based on this final count, it calculates
how much should have been paid to the School and included in the reconciliation will be any amounts due from
the funding source included in grants and other receivables on the statement of financial position at year end, or
any amounts payable to the funding source included as a liability on the statement of financial position at year
end, as amounts are trued up to actual based on actual numbers submitted at year end.

Additional funding is also provided to support special education services. All students who are identified to need
special education services or settings have an Individualized Education Program (“IEP”), formalized for his or her
unique needs. Based on this IEP, the student is categorized into one of three levels of service: 0-20% service,
20-60% service, or 60% or more service required and provided by the School. For a student receiving less than
20% in services, no additional funding is received. For a student receiving services between 20% and 60% and
60% or more services of the school day, additional funding per FTE is received. Billing for this support is
incorporated into the per-pupil invoices and is also settled in the same FTE per-pupil reconciliation process.

As the students receive the benefit of these services simultaneously as the School is providing them, the School
recognizes per-pupil revenue from these services over time. The School believes that this method provides a
reasonable depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the services
needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to students
receiving academic or school services. The School measures the performance obligation from admission or
enrollment into the School to the point when the student is discharged or the end of the school year where it is no
longer required to provide services to the student, which is generally at the time of discharge or the completion of
the school year. All of these services are bundled and considered a single-performance obligation, and as such,
the School accounts for these bundled-performance obligations under state and local per pupil operating revenue
in the statement of activities and recognizes the per-pupil revenue over time. Any adjustments that occur are
recorded in the period they become known.

Government Grants

Revenue from federal, state, and local government grants and contracts is recognized by the School when
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable to the government, or when required services have been
provided.

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, contract assets are to be recognized when
an entity has the right to receive consideration in exchange for goods or services that have been transferred to a
customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time. The School does not
recognize contract assets, as the right to receive consideration is unconditional in accordance with the passage
of time criteria. Also, in accordance with ASC 606, contract liabilities are to be recognized when an entity is
obligated to transfer goods or services for which consideration has already been received. The School does not
receive consideration prior to the transfer of goods or services and, therefore, does not recognize contract
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The School has established a $1,000 threshold above which assets are evaluated to be
capitalized. Leasehold improvements and finance lease equipment are amortized over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset or the lease term. Property and equipment acquired with certain government contract funds is
recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the contract in which the government funding source retains
ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; major renewals and
betterments are capitalized, based on the established threshold.

Impairment

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the School recognizes
an impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Advertising

The School expenses advertising costs as incurred. The School incurred $108,232 of advertising costs for the
year ended June 30, 2021, which is included in the accompanying statement of functional expenses under
student and staff recruitment.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
accompanying statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the respective
programs and activities according to the functional categories, as follows:

Program Services — This category represents expenses related to general education and special education
for certain students requiring additional attention and guidance. These costs are allocated based on the
FTE allocation method.

Management and General — This category represents expenses related to the overall administration and
operation of the School that are not specific to any program services or development. These costs are
allocated based on the FTE allocation method.

Fundraising — This category represents expenses directly associated with the School’s effort to raise funds
to support the operations for the School. These costs are allocated based on time and effort.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Debt Issuance Costs
The School presents debt issuance costs as a reduction in the carrying amount of the debt in the statement of

financial position. Costs incurred in connection with the borrowing are capitalized and amortized over the life of
the loan using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

The School is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and,
therefore, has made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, the
School has been determined by the IRS not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of
the IRC. There was no unrelated business income for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Under U.S. GAAP, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associate with tax positions taken for tax-return
purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon examination by a taxing
authority. The School does not believe it has taken any material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it has
not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The School is subject to routine audits by a taxing
authority. As of June 30, 2021, the School was not subject to any examination by a taxing authority.

Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the Financial Standards Accounting Board “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases, which applies a right-of-use (“ROU”) model that requires a lessee to record, for all
leases with a lease term of more than 12 months, an asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and
a liability to make lease payments. For leases with a term of 12 months or less, a practical expedient is available
whereby a lessee may elect, by class of underlying asset, not to recognize an ROU asset or lease liability. At
inception, lessees must classify all leases as either finance or operating based on five criteria. Statement of
financial position recognition of finance and operating leases is similar, but the pattern of expense recognition in
the statement of activities, as well as the effect on the statement of cash flows, differs depending on the lease
classification. In addition, lessees and lessors are required to provide certain qualitative and quantitative
disclosures to enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows
arising from leases. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The
School has adopted and reflected this pronouncement in these financial statements. See Note 6 for impact of
adoption.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement Issued But Not Yet Adopted

Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-For-Profit Entities for
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (Topic 958). The update requires not-for-profits to present contributed
nonfinancial assets as a separate line item on the statement of activities, and to disclose information regarding
each type of contributed nonfinancial assets. The update is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, with
early application permitted. The School is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2020-07.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities, and other obligations come due. The School's management meets monthly to address projected cash
flows to meet its operational expenditures. The School's financial assets available within one year of the
statement of financial position date for general expenditures are as follows:

11
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

Cash $ 8,231,320
Cash - restricted 75,263
Bond resene funds - restricted cash 2,009,599
Grants receivable 829,397
Total financial assets 11,145,579

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures
within one year due to:
Restricted cash (2,084,862)

Total financial assets available to management for general
expenditures within one year $ 9,060,717

4, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30, 2021:

Estimated
Useful Life
Furniture and fixtures $ 992,683 3 years
Equipment and computers 1,172,344 3 years
Lesser of life of the
Leasehold improvements 21,297,308 asset or lease term
23,462,335
Less: accumulated depreciation and
amortization (5,244,036)
$ 18,218,299

Depreciation and amortization expense of property and equipment amounted to $1,116,364 for the year ended
June 30, 2021.

5. BONDS PAYABLE

The School is a conduit bond obligor for $17,560,000 Series 2018A Bonds (the “2018A Bonds”) and $435,000
Taxable Series 2018B (the “2018B Bonds”) Bonds. The 2018A Bonds were issued on May 15, 2018 with a
maturity date of May 1, 2048 and interest rates ranging from 4.875% to 5.50%. The 2018B Bonds were issued on
May 15, 2018 with a maturity date of May 1, 2022 and interest rate of 5.95%. The proceeds from the 2018A
Bonds and 2018B Bonds were used to build, renovate and improve a rental facility, pay for the costs of issuance
and to fund several reserve bank accounts. The School repaid $300,000 of the 2018B Bonds payable during the
year ended June 30, 2021.

12
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5. BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The reserve accounts consist of the following at June 30, 2021:

2018A and 2018B Bonds interest $ 155,650
2018A and 2018B Bonds principal 53,341
Project Reserve Fund 502,635
2018A Bonds debt senice 1,225,610
2018B Bonds debt senice 30,361
Bonds Repair and Replacement reserve 42,001
2018B Cost of Issuance 1

$ 2,009,599

The reserve funds are recorded as bond reserve funds — restricted cash in the accompanying statement of
financial position.

The School incurred issuance costs of $711,624 and collected a Bond premium of $116,687 in connection with
the 2018A Bonds and 2018B Bonds, which are amortized over the life of the Bonds. The amortization of the debt
issuance costs for the year ended June 30, 2021 amounted to $45,734 and is included in interest expense on the
accompanying statement of functional expenses. The accumulated amortization of the debt issuance costs
amounted to $146,137 for the year ended June 30, 2021 and is included in bonds payable, net on the
accompanying statement of financial position. The amortization of the Bond premium for the year ended June 30,
2021 amounted to $3,670 and is included in interest expense on the accompanying statement of functional
expenses. The accumulated amortization of the Bond premium amounted to $11,621 for the year ended June 30,
2021.

Bonds payable, net consists of the following at June 30, 2021:

Series 2018A Bonds $ 17,560,000
Taxable Series 2018B Bonds 135,000

17,695,000
Add: Unamortized bond premium 105,066
Less: Unamortized debt issue costs (565,487)

$ 17,234,579

Aggregate maturities of bonds payable for each of the succeeding five years are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2022 $ 320,000
2023 335,000
2024 355,000
2025 370,000
2026 390,000
Thereafter 15,925,000

$ 17,695,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The School adopted ASU 2016-02 “Leases” (Topic 842) which resulted in recording total assets and liabilities
increasing by approximately $41,099,940 and $41,839,216, respectively, due to the recognition of operating and
finance lease assets and liabilities. The effect of this adoption resulted in an adjustment to net assets of $386,338
as of July 1, 2020, the date of the adoption.

The School leases space primarily for operation of the School. The School estimates the expected lease terms
by assuming the exercise of renewal options where an economic penalty exists that would preclude the
abandonment of the leases at the end of the initial non-cancelable terms and the exercise of such renewal is at
the sole discretion of the School. The expected lease terms are used in the determination of whether a lease is a
finance or operating lease and in the calculation of straight-line rent expense. Additionally, the useful life of
leasehold improvements is limited by the expected lease term or the economic life of the asset, whichever is
shorter. If significant expenditures are made for leasehold improvements late in the expected lease term and
renewal is reasonably assured, the useful life of the leasehold improvement is limited to the end of the renewal
period or economic life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Rent abatements and escalations are considered in the
calculation of minimum lease payments in determining straight-line rent expense for operating leases.

Lessor accounting under ASU 2016-02 is consistent with the previous U.S. GAAP treatment, with updates to
align with certain changes to the lessee model and the new revenue standard (Topic 606). Similar to current
guidance, lessors will classify leases as operating, direct financing, or sales-type. These are considered
operating leases under the current standard, as well as the new standard.

ASU 2016-02 will also require lessors to allocate (rather than recognize as currently required) certain variable
payments to the lease and non-lease components when the changes in facts and circumstances on which the
variable payment is based occur.

ASU 2016-02 permits lessors, as an accounting policy election, to not evaluate whether certain sales taxes and
other similar taxes are lessor costs or lessee costs. Instead, those lessors will account for those costs as if they
are lessee costs. The School has made this accounting policy election. In addition, ASU 2016-02 also allows
lessors to exclude certain costs from variable payments, and therefore revenue, for lessor costs paid by lessees
directly to third parties. The School has also made this accounting policy election.

ASU 2016-02 also permits lessors, as an accounting policy election, to not separate lease and non-lease
components if the non-lease components would otherwise be accounted for under Topic 606, the timing and
pattern of both the lease and non-lease components is the same and the lease component would be accounted
for as an operating lease under ASU 2016-02. The School has not made this accounting policy election.

The School has completed its assessment and implementation activities, which included compiling the lease
inventory, concluding on industry issues and implementing transition controls over the new requirements. The
School is expecting no impact to its financial position, operations, or cash flows from the adoption of ASU 2016-
02.

On June 19, 2014, the School entered into a lease with the Roman Catholic Church of St. Jude. The lease period
is from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2024. The School took possession of this space in July 2014. The lease
was modified with Friends of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (“Friends of IAL”), a related party of
the School. In the event Friends of IAL defaults on rental payments, the School is held liable for any unpaid
balance.
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the sublease agreement, the School is obligated for minimum annual rentals payable to Friends of
IAL. The School is obligated for certain operating costs at this site. The future minimum commitments to Friends
of IAL are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2022 $ 1,277,000
2023 1,277,000
2024 1,437,444
3,991,444
Less: amount representing interest (19,509)
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 3,971,935

Total rental expense and occupancy costs under noncancellable operating leases for the year ended June 30,
2021 amounted to $1,317,111, which is included in the accompanying statement of functional expenses under
building and land rent / lease.

Friends of IAL entered into a lease with 3896 10th Ave Associates. On April 12, 2018, the School entered into a
sublease agreement with Friends of IAL for the premises located at 3896 10th Avenue effective July 1, 2019
through June 30, 2061. In the event Friends of IAL defaults on rental payments, the School is held liable for any
unpaid balance. As part of the lease agreement, the School was required to pay a security deposit of $500,000,
which is included in the statement of financial position under prepaid expenses and other assets.

Pursuant to the sublease agreement, the School is obligated for minimum annual rentals payable to Friends of
IAL. The School is obligated for certain operating costs at these sites.

The School has also entered into finance lease agreements for the purchase of computers and equipment. The
leases expire during fiscal years 2022, 2023, and 2024.

The balance of the finance lease liabilities at June 30, 2021 was $37,867,281. The future lease payments are as
follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2022 $ 2,254,304
2023 2,232,187
2024 2,228,394
2025 2,179,050
2026 2,179,050
Thereafter 80,181,663
91,254,648
Less: amount representing interest (53,387,367)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payment $ 37,867,281

Interest expense on the leases for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $1,953,707.
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7. PENSION PLAN

The School has a 403(b) profit sharing plan (the “Plan”) which covers most of the employees. The Plan is a
defined contribution plan. Employees are eligible to enroll in the Plan either on the first day of the Plan year or the
first day of the seventh month of the Plan year. Those employees who have completed at least 1 full year of
service are also eligible for employer contributions. The Plan provides for the School to contribute up to 5% of an
employee’s salary. The School contribution becomes fully vested after the employee completes one year of
service. For the year ended June 30, 2021, pension expense for the School was $302,900, which is included in
retirement benefits in the accompanying statement of functional expenses.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to help protect itself
from such risks. The School also intends to defend its positions on these matters. As of June 30, 2021, there are
no matters for which the School believes the ultimate outcome would have a material adverse effect on the
School’s financial position.

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The governmental
agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as well as additional funds for
the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the possible disallowance or
refund. The School is of the opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect in the
School’s financial statements.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (‘CARES”) was signed into law in
response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The CARES Act includes many measures to provide relief to
companies and organizations. Under the CARES Act, the Local Education Agencies (‘LEAs”) received funds
from the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (‘ESSER”) fund to provide equitable services to
students and teachers in non-public schools. The School was granted funds to defray the COVID-19 outbreak
costs under the aforementioned ESSER fund during the year ended June 30, 2021.

9. CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash accounts at
a major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limit of
$250,000. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any
significant credit risk on its cash accounts.

The School received approximately 79% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the NYCDOE during the
year ended June 30, 2021.

Three major grantors accounted for approximately 72% of grants receivable at June 30, 2021.

One vendor accounted for approximately 54% of accounts payable at June 30, 2021.
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School has evaluated events through October 29, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. There were no other subsequent events identified that would require an adjustment to the
financial statements or disclosure as a result of these procedures except the following:

In July 2021, the School entered into a finance lease agreement for the purchase of computers. The lease
expires during fiscal year 2025.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH
CFDA ENTITY IDENTIFYING PROVIDED TO FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NUMBER NUMBER SUBRECIPIENTS EXPENDITURES
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed-through from New York State Education Department:
Title | - Grants to Local Educational Agencies (Title |, Part A of the ESEA) 84.010 Not Applicable $ - $ 347,180
Title Il - Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84 367 Not Applicable - 65,575
Title Il - English Language Acquisition Grants 84 365 Not Applicable - 36,622
Title IV - Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 84.424 Not Applicable - 29,000
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER) 84.425D Not Applicable - 314,133
Charter Schools Programs - Response to COVID-19 Grants 84 282 Not Applicable - 49,955
Special Education Cluster ( DEA):

Special Education - Grants to States ( DEA, Part B) 84 027 Not Applicable - 214,740
Total U.S. Department of Education - 1,057,205
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Pass-through New York State Education Department

Child Nutrition Cluster

School Breakfast Program (SBP) 10.553 Not Applicable - 29,026

National School Lunch Program (NSLP) 10 555 Not Applicable - 132,915
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - 161,941
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ -8 1,219,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award
activity of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School under programs of the federal government for the year
ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion
of the operations of the Schooal, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets or cash flows of the School.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or limited as to reimbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE

The School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards

To the Board of Trustees
Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School
New York, New York

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter
School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control over
financial reporting (“internal control’) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have
not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’'s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

PO uUsh, L

New York, NY
October 29, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustees
Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School
New York, New York

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (the “School”’) compliance with the type of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the School’'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The School’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’'s major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the School’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the School’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over compliance.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international
BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance (continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

POO wsq Lf

New York, NY
October 29, 2021
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether

the financial statements audited were prepared

in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes v No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No

+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v" None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a)? Yes v No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.010 Title | — Grants to Local Educational
Agencies (Title |, Part A of the ESEA)

84.425D Elementary and Secondary School
Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER)
Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes v No

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING

There were no findings related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
generally accepted government auditing standards.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings and questioned costs for federal awards (as defined in 2 CFR 200.516 (a)) that are
required to be reported.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School
New York, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (the
“School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international
BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Other Matter

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements, and to certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements, or to the financial
statements themselves, and to other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2021, on
our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

POO sk LF

New York, NY
October 29, 2021



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash $ 8,231,320
Cash - restricted 75,263
Bond reserve funds - restricted cash 2,009,599
Grants receivable 829,397
Prepaid expenses and other assets 513,852
Right-of-use assets 41,099,940
Property and equipment, net 18,218,299
$ 70,977,670
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 258,130
Accrued interest expense 155,613
Bonds payable, net 17,234,579
Due to NYC Department of Education 419
Finance lease liabilities 37,867,281
Operating lease liabilities 3,971,935
59,487,957
NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 11,489,713
$ 70,977,670

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

OPERATING REVENUE AND SUPPORT
State and local per pupil operating revenue
Government grants and contracts
Contributions and other grants
Interest income

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Satisfaction of program restrictions

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
EXPENSES
Program services

Management and general
Fundraising

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Donations
Net assets released from restrictions
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

18,694,980
3,389,194
1,320,727

40,805

23,445,706

37,081

23,482,787

18,883,989
4,117,169
293,560

23,294,718

188,069

21,875
(37,081)

(15,206)

172,863

10,930,512

386,338

$

11,489,713

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from operating revenue and support
Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Cash received from interest income
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from refund of equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Right-of-use assets
Operating lease liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Repayment of bonds payable
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bond premium
Amortization of debt issuance costs

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest expense
Due to NYC Department of Education

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash and Cash - Restricted Consist of:

Cash

Cash - restricted
Bond reserve funds - restricted cash

Total

Cash paid for interest

$ 23,189,848
(21,735,639)
40,805

1,495,014

(654,240)
11,970

(642,270)

(42,024,524)
3,971,935
37,867,281

(300,000)

(485,308)
367,436
9,048,746

$ 10,316,182

$ 172,863

2,040,948
(3,670)
45,734

(237,347)
2,085

(523,043)

(2,975)
419

$ 1,495,014

$ 8,231,320
75,263
2,009,599

S 10316182

S 2805613

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit educational
corporation that was incorporated on December 15, 2009 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 56 of the
Educational Law of the State of New York. The School was granted a provisional charter on December 15, 2009,
valid for a term of five years and renewable by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York.
The charter of the School was renewed and extended to June 30, 2025.

The School opened its doors in the Fall of 2010 in Upper Manhattan with a rigorous academic program and a
highly structured and supportive school culture. The School is uniquely designed to empower students in Inwood
and Washington Heights to become agents for change through community-focused leadership, character
development and college preparedness.

The School operates classes for students in the fifth through twelfth grades.

The School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service (‘IRS”), is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (‘IRC”) as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and under the corresponding provisions of the New York State tax laws. The School has also been classified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for
deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Statement Presentation

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

The classification of the School's net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of the two classes of net assets —
with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions — be displayed in a statement of financial position and that the
amount of change in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities.

These classes are defined as follows:

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is subject
to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits reflecting the nature of the not-for-
profit entity, the environment in which it operates and the purposes specified in its articles of incorporation
or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-imposed restrictions may be temporary in nature, such as
stipulating that resources may be used only after a specified date or limited to specific programs or services.
Certain donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is not
subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both contributions not subject to
donor restrictions and exchange transactions, and are, therefore, available for general operations.

At June 30, 2021, the School had no assets with donor restrictions.
Cash - Restricted
The Board of Regents of the State University of New York requires an escrow account of $75,000 to be held

aside under the provisions of the School’s charter to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated
with a dissolution should it occur. As of June 30, 2021, the School had restricted cash of $75,263.



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable represent unconditional promises to give. Grants receivable that are expected to be collected
within one year and recorded at net realizable value are $829,397 at June 30, 2021. The School has determined
that no allowance for uncollectible accounts for grants receivable is necessary at June 30, 2021. Such estimate
is based on management’'s assessment of the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current economic
conditions and historical information.

Contributions

Transfers of cash or other assets or settlement of liabilities that are both voluntary and nonreciprocal are
recognized as contributions.

Contributions may either be conditional or unconditional. A contribution is considered conditional when the donor
imposes both a measurable barrier and a right of return. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue on
the date all donor-imposed barriers are overcome or explicitly waived by the donor. Barriers may include specific
and measurable outcomes, limitations on the performance of an activity and other stipulations related to the
contribution. A donor has a right of return of any assets transferred or a right of release of its obligation to transfer
any assets in the event the School fails to overcome one or more barriers. Assets received before the barrier is
overcome are accounted for as refundable advances.

Donor-imposed restrictions limit the use of the donated assets as to time or purpose restrictions.

Contributions subject to donor restrictions are recognized in changes in net assets with donor restrictions. When
a purpose restriction is satisfied or when a time restriction expires, the contribution is reported as net assets
released from restrictions and is recognized in changes in net assets without donor restrictions in the statement
of activities.

Revenue Recognition

Per-Pupil Revenue

The School recognizes revenues from per-pupil funding in the fiscal year in which the academic programs are
provided. Per-pupil revenue is billed and received based on the total number of full-time equivalent (“FTE”)
students and the basic charter school tuition rate for the school district of residence of the students attending the
School in any given fiscal year for general education and special education. The FTE is formula-driven and based
on the number of days the student has been with the School as a proportion of the number of days in the entire
school year (the calculation is done by using the New York State calculator online). The School’s total student
population includes general education and special education students. The School has determined that revenue
from its students has the same performance obligations, types of contract, and services rendered. As a result, the
student body is viewed as one customer base for revenue purposes. The School uses a portfolio approach to
account for per-pupil contracts as a collective group rather than recognizing revenue on an individual-contract
basis. The School believes that revenue recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue
that would have been recognized if an individual contract approach were used.



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Per-Pupil Revenue (continued)

Per-pupil invoicing is managed on a bi-monthly basis to the funding source (local school district). Billing is a
function of student enroliment for the upcoming fiscal year, which is the basis for the first two invoices per-pupil
due June 1% and July 31%, which is a projection. Subsequent invoices are due bi-monthly. With the
implementation of an automated-invoicing process through a dedicated website, the submission of each invoice
is done online. After the year is complete, the School submits the FTE per-pupil reconciliation, listing every
student who attended any part of the year, and the FTE each represents. Based on this final count, it calculates
how much should have been paid to the School and included in the reconciliation will be any amounts due from
the funding source included in grants and other receivables on the statement of financial position at year end, or
any amounts payable to the funding source included as a liability on the statement of financial position at year
end, as amounts are trued up to actual based on actual numbers submitted at year end.

Additional funding is also provided to support special education services. All students who are identified to need
special education services or settings have an Individualized Education Program (“IEP”), formalized for his or her
unique needs. Based on this IEP, the student is categorized into one of three levels of service: 0-20% service,
20-60% service, or 60% or more service required and provided by the School. For a student receiving less than
20% in services, no additional funding is received. For a student receiving services between 20% and 60% and
60% or more services of the school day, additional funding per FTE is received. Billing for this support is
incorporated into the per-pupil invoices and is also settled in the same FTE per-pupil reconciliation process.

As the students receive the benefit of these services simultaneously as the School is providing them, the School
recognizes per-pupil revenue from these services over time. The School believes that this method provides a
reasonable depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the services
needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to students
receiving academic or school services. The School measures the performance obligation from admission or
enrollment into the School to the point when the student is discharged or the end of the school year where it is no
longer required to provide services to the student, which is generally at the time of discharge or the completion of
the school year. All of these services are bundled and considered a single-performance obligation, and as such,
the School accounts for these bundled-performance obligations under state and local per pupil operating revenue
in the statement of activities and recognizes the per-pupil revenue over time. Any adjustments that occur are
recorded in the period they become known.

Government Grants

Revenue from federal, state, and local government grants and contracts is recognized by the School when
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable to the government, or when required services have been
provided.

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, contract assets are to be recognized when
an entity has the right to receive consideration in exchange for goods or services that have been transferred to a
customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time. The School does not
recognize contract assets, as the right to receive consideration is unconditional in accordance with the passage
of time criteria. Also, in accordance with ASC 606, contract liabilities are to be recognized when an entity is
obligated to transfer goods or services for which consideration has already been received. The School does not
receive consideration prior to the transfer of goods or services and, therefore, does not recognize contract
liabilities.



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The School has established a $1,000 threshold above which assets are evaluated to be
capitalized. Leasehold improvements and finance lease equipment are amortized over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset or the lease term. Property and equipment acquired with certain government contract funds is
recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the contract in which the government funding source retains
ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; major renewals and
betterments are capitalized, based on the established threshold.

Impairment

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the School recognizes
an impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Advertising

The School expenses advertising costs as incurred. The School incurred $108,232 of advertising costs for the
year ended June 30, 2021, which is included in the accompanying statement of functional expenses under
student and staff recruitment.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
accompanying statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the respective
programs and activities according to the functional categories, as follows:

Program Services — This category represents expenses related to general education and special education
for certain students requiring additional attention and guidance. These costs are allocated based on the
FTE allocation method.

Management and General — This category represents expenses related to the overall administration and
operation of the School that are not specific to any program services or development. These costs are
allocated based on the FTE allocation method.

Fundraising — This category represents expenses directly associated with the School’s effort to raise funds
to support the operations for the School. These costs are allocated based on time and effort.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Debt Issuance Costs
The School presents debt issuance costs as a reduction in the carrying amount of the debt in the statement of

financial position. Costs incurred in connection with the borrowing are capitalized and amortized over the life of
the loan using the effective interest method.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

The School is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and,
therefore, has made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, the
School has been determined by the IRS not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of
the IRC. There was no unrelated business income for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Under U.S. GAAP, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associate with tax positions taken for tax-return
purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon examination by a taxing
authority. The School does not believe it has taken any material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it has
not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The School is subject to routine audits by a taxing
authority. As of June 30, 2021, the School was not subject to any examination by a taxing authority.

Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the Financial Standards Accounting Board “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases, which applies a right-of-use (“ROU”) model that requires a lessee to record, for all
leases with a lease term of more than 12 months, an asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and
a liability to make lease payments. For leases with a term of 12 months or less, a practical expedient is available
whereby a lessee may elect, by class of underlying asset, not to recognize an ROU asset or lease liability. At
inception, lessees must classify all leases as either finance or operating based on five criteria. Statement of
financial position recognition of finance and operating leases is similar, but the pattern of expense recognition in
the statement of activities, as well as the effect on the statement of cash flows, differs depending on the lease
classification. In addition, lessees and lessors are required to provide certain qualitative and quantitative
disclosures to enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows
arising from leases. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The
School has adopted and reflected this pronouncement in these financial statements. See Note 6 for impact of
adoption.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement Issued But Not Yet Adopted

Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-For-Profit Entities for
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (Topic 958). The update requires not-for-profits to present contributed
nonfinancial assets as a separate line item on the statement of activities, and to disclose information regarding
each type of contributed nonfinancial assets. The update is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, with
early application permitted. The School is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2020-07.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities, and other obligations come due. The School's management meets monthly to address projected cash
flows to meet its operational expenditures. The School's financial assets available within one year of the
statement of financial position date for general expenditures are as follows:

11



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

Cash $ 8,231,320
Cash - restricted 75,263
Bond resene funds - restricted cash 2,009,599
Grants receivable 829,397
Total financial assets 11,145,579

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures
within one year due to:
Restricted cash (2,084,862)

Total financial assets available to management for general
expenditures within one year $ 9,060,717

4, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30, 2021:

Estimated
Useful Life
Furniture and fixtures $ 992,683 3 years
Equipment and computers 1,172,344 3 years
Lesser of life of the
Leasehold improvements 21,297,308 asset or lease term
23,462,335
Less: accumulated depreciation and
amortization (5,244,036)
$ 18,218,299

Depreciation and amortization expense of property and equipment amounted to $1,116,364 for the year ended
June 30, 2021.

5. BONDS PAYABLE

The School is a conduit bond obligor for $17,560,000 Series 2018A Bonds (the “2018A Bonds”) and $435,000
Taxable Series 2018B (the “2018B Bonds”) Bonds. The 2018A Bonds were issued on May 15, 2018 with a
maturity date of May 1, 2048 and interest rates ranging from 4.875% to 5.50%. The 2018B Bonds were issued on
May 15, 2018 with a maturity date of May 1, 2022 and interest rate of 5.95%. The proceeds from the 2018A
Bonds and 2018B Bonds were used to build, renovate and improve a rental facility, pay for the costs of issuance
and to fund several reserve bank accounts. The School repaid $300,000 of the 2018B Bonds payable during the
year ended June 30, 2021.

12



INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

5. BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The reserve accounts consist of the following at June 30, 2021:

2018A and 2018B Bonds interest $ 155,650
2018A and 2018B Bonds principal 53,341
Project Reserve Fund 502,635
2018A Bonds debt senice 1,225,610
2018B Bonds debt senice 30,361
Bonds Repair and Replacement reserve 42,001
2018B Cost of Issuance 1

$ 2,009,599

The reserve funds are recorded as bond reserve funds — restricted cash in the accompanying statement of
financial position.

The School incurred issuance costs of $711,624 and collected a Bond premium of $116,687 in connection with
the 2018A Bonds and 2018B Bonds, which are amortized over the life of the Bonds. The amortization of the debt
issuance costs for the year ended June 30, 2021 amounted to $45,734 and is included in interest expense on the
accompanying statement of functional expenses. The accumulated amortization of the debt issuance costs
amounted to $146,137 for the year ended June 30, 2021 and is included in bonds payable, net on the
accompanying statement of financial position. The amortization of the Bond premium for the year ended June 30,
2021 amounted to $3,670 and is included in interest expense on the accompanying statement of functional
expenses. The accumulated amortization of the Bond premium amounted to $11,621 for the year ended June 30,
2021.

Bonds payable, net consists of the following at June 30, 2021:

Series 2018A Bonds $ 17,560,000
Taxable Series 2018B Bonds 135,000

17,695,000
Add: Unamortized bond premium 105,066
Less: Unamortized debt issue costs (565,487)

$ 17,234,579

Aggregate maturities of bonds payable for each of the succeeding five years are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2022 $ 320,000
2023 335,000
2024 355,000
2025 370,000
2026 390,000
Thereafter 15,925,000

$ 17,695,000
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The School adopted ASU 2016-02 “Leases” (Topic 842) which resulted in recording total assets and liabilities
increasing by approximately $41,099,940 and $41,839,216, respectively, due to the recognition of operating and
finance lease assets and liabilities. The effect of this adoption resulted in an adjustment to net assets of $386,338
as of July 1, 2020, the date of the adoption.

The School leases space primarily for operation of the School. The School estimates the expected lease terms
by assuming the exercise of renewal options where an economic penalty exists that would preclude the
abandonment of the leases at the end of the initial non-cancelable terms and the exercise of such renewal is at
the sole discretion of the School. The expected lease terms are used in the determination of whether a lease is a
finance or operating lease and in the calculation of straight-line rent expense. Additionally, the useful life of
leasehold improvements is limited by the expected lease term or the economic life of the asset, whichever is
shorter. If significant expenditures are made for leasehold improvements late in the expected lease term and
renewal is reasonably assured, the useful life of the leasehold improvement is limited to the end of the renewal
period or economic life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Rent abatements and escalations are considered in the
calculation of minimum lease payments in determining straight-line rent expense for operating leases.

Lessor accounting under ASU 2016-02 is consistent with the previous U.S. GAAP treatment, with updates to
align with certain changes to the lessee model and the new revenue standard (Topic 606). Similar to current
guidance, lessors will classify leases as operating, direct financing, or sales-type. These are considered
operating leases under the current standard, as well as the new standard.

ASU 2016-02 will also require lessors to allocate (rather than recognize as currently required) certain variable
payments to the lease and non-lease components when the changes in facts and circumstances on which the
variable payment is based occur.

ASU 2016-02 permits lessors, as an accounting policy election, to not evaluate whether certain sales taxes and
other similar taxes are lessor costs or lessee costs. Instead, those lessors will account for those costs as if they
are lessee costs. The School has made this accounting policy election. In addition, ASU 2016-02 also allows
lessors to exclude certain costs from variable payments, and therefore revenue, for lessor costs paid by lessees
directly to third parties. The School has also made this accounting policy election.

ASU 2016-02 also permits lessors, as an accounting policy election, to not separate lease and non-lease
components if the non-lease components would otherwise be accounted for under Topic 606, the timing and
pattern of both the lease and non-lease components is the same and the lease component would be accounted
for as an operating lease under ASU 2016-02. The School has not made this accounting policy election.

The School has completed its assessment and implementation activities, which included compiling the lease
inventory, concluding on industry issues and implementing transition controls over the new requirements. The
School is expecting no impact to its financial position, operations, or cash flows from the adoption of ASU 2016-
02.

On June 19, 2014, the School entered into a lease with the Roman Catholic Church of St. Jude. The lease period
is from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2024. The School took possession of this space in July 2014. The lease
was modified with Friends of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (“Friends of IAL”), a related party of
the School. In the event Friends of IAL defaults on rental payments, the School is held liable for any unpaid
balance.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the sublease agreement, the School is obligated for minimum annual rentals payable to Friends of
IAL. The School is obligated for certain operating costs at this site. The future minimum commitments to Friends
of IAL are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2022 $ 1,277,000
2023 1,277,000
2024 1,437,444
3,991,444
Less: amount representing interest (19,509)
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 3,971,935

Total rental expense and occupancy costs under noncancellable operating leases for the year ended June 30,
2021 amounted to $1,317,111, which is included in the accompanying statement of functional expenses under
building and land rent / lease.

Friends of IAL entered into a lease with 3896 10th Ave Associates. On April 12, 2018, the School entered into a
sublease agreement with Friends of IAL for the premises located at 3896 10th Avenue effective July 1, 2019
through June 30, 2061. In the event Friends of IAL defaults on rental payments, the School is held liable for any
unpaid balance. As part of the lease agreement, the School was required to pay a security deposit of $500,000,
which is included in the statement of financial position under prepaid expenses and other assets.

Pursuant to the sublease agreement, the School is obligated for minimum annual rentals payable to Friends of
IAL. The School is obligated for certain operating costs at these sites.

The School has also entered into finance lease agreements for the purchase of computers and equipment. The
leases expire during fiscal years 2022, 2023, and 2024.

The balance of the finance lease liabilities at June 30, 2021 was $37,867,281. The future lease payments are as
follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2022 $ 2,254,304
2023 2,232,187
2024 2,228,394
2025 2,179,050
2026 2,179,050
Thereafter 80,181,663
91,254,648
Less: amount representing interest (53,387,367)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payment $ 37,867,281

Interest expense on the leases for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $1,953,707.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

7. PENSION PLAN

The School has a 403(b) profit sharing plan (the “Plan”) which covers most of the employees. The Plan is a
defined contribution plan. Employees are eligible to enroll in the Plan either on the first day of the Plan year or the
first day of the seventh month of the Plan year. Those employees who have completed at least 1 full year of
service are also eligible for employer contributions. The Plan provides for the School to contribute up to 5% of an
employee’s salary. The School contribution becomes fully vested after the employee completes one year of
service. For the year ended June 30, 2021, pension expense for the School was $302,900, which is included in
retirement benefits in the accompanying statement of functional expenses.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to help protect itself
from such risks. The School also intends to defend its positions on these matters. As of June 30, 2021, there are
no matters for which the School believes the ultimate outcome would have a material adverse effect on the
School’s financial position.

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The governmental
agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as well as additional funds for
the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the possible disallowance or
refund. The School is of the opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect in the
School’s financial statements.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (‘CARES”) was signed into law in
response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The CARES Act includes many measures to provide relief to
companies and organizations. Under the CARES Act, the Local Education Agencies (‘LEAs”) received funds
from the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (‘ESSER”) fund to provide equitable services to
students and teachers in non-public schools. The School was granted funds to defray the COVID-19 outbreak
costs under the aforementioned ESSER fund during the year ended June 30, 2021.

9. CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash accounts at
a major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limit of
$250,000. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any
significant credit risk on its cash accounts.

The School received approximately 79% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the NYCDOE during the
year ended June 30, 2021.

Three major grantors accounted for approximately 72% of grants receivable at June 30, 2021.

One vendor accounted for approximately 54% of accounts payable at June 30, 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School has evaluated events through October 29, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. There were no other subsequent events identified that would require an adjustment to the
financial statements or disclosure as a result of these procedures except the following:

In July 2021, the School entered into a finance lease agreement for the purchase of computers. The lease
expires during fiscal year 2025.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH
CFDA ENTITY IDENTIFYING PROVIDED TO FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NUMBER NUMBER SUBRECIPIENTS EXPENDITURES
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed-through from New York State Education Department:
Title | - Grants to Local Educational Agencies (Title |, Part A of the ESEA) 84.010 Not Applicable $ - $ 347,180
Title Il - Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84 367 Not Applicable - 65,575
Title Il - English Language Acquisition Grants 84 365 Not Applicable - 36,622
Title IV - Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 84.424 Not Applicable - 29,000
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER) 84.425D Not Applicable - 314,133
Charter Schools Programs - Response to COVID-19 Grants 84 282 Not Applicable - 49,955
Special Education Cluster ( DEA):

Special Education - Grants to States ( DEA, Part B) 84 027 Not Applicable - 214,740
Total U.S. Department of Education - 1,057,205
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Pass-through New York State Education Department

Child Nutrition Cluster

School Breakfast Program (SBP) 10.553 Not Applicable - 29,026

National School Lunch Program (NSLP) 10 555 Not Applicable - 132,915
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - 161,941
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ -8 1,219,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2021

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award
activity of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School under programs of the federal government for the year
ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion
of the operations of the Schooal, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets or cash flows of the School.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or limited as to reimbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE

The School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards

To the Board of Trustees
Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School
New York, New York

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter
School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control over
financial reporting (“internal control’) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have
not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’'s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

PO uUsh, L

New York, NY
October 29, 2021

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international
BDO network of independent member firms.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustees
Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School
New York, New York

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School (the “School”’) compliance with the type of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the School’'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The School’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’'s major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the School’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the School’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over compliance.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international
BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.


http:www.bdo.com

|IBDO

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance (continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

POO wsq Lf

New York, NY
October 29, 2021
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether

the financial statements audited were prepared

in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes v No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No

+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v" None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a)? Yes v No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.010 Title | — Grants to Local Educational
Agencies (Title |, Part A of the ESEA)

84.425D Elementary and Secondary School
Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER)
Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes v No

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING

There were no findings related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
generally accepted government auditing standards.
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INWOOD ACADEMY FOR LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings and questioned costs for federal awards (as defined in 2 CFR 200.516 (a)) that are
required to be reported.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an takelg io
conducted interest in the .
e avoid
organization E
: - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

None

Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.

/s/ Kathleen Mangual 7/30/2021

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: k taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
None None None None None
DocuSigned by:
M 9,‘,4 7/30/2021
2E3C48ADBBEA406..
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: k taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
None None None None None
DocuSigned by:
Katbleon Soith 7/30/2021
CF0255FFEQ724A4...
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an ¢
: : aken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
NA NA NA NA NA

DocuSigned by:
@'\/‘“ %__ 7/29/2021
AA3C773583DB400

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation. n/a

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

X Yes * No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

I am an employee of the school.

7. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Please write “INone” if applicablle. Do not leave|this space blank.
January 2010 -| currepirst date of 41mp1o&cnut66yfm hodleelds that pertain to myself or
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
DocuSigned by:
i 29/2021
(rdina Kuues 7/
AOSFF84E!!EA?ZMK(;(;"z
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an ¢
: : aken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
None None None None None

DocuSigned by:
@% 7/30/2020
9AAAOBE23D3547F

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 09AD4A97-1E24-497D-BBA5-574909BE7C7B










DocuSign Envelope ID: 97545503-AB5C-43BF-8490-7150D715338D

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
None None None None None
DocuSigned by:
[ amin. (il sou. SRR
4103E900FFED4FB
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business ¢
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.

None None None None None
DocuSigned by:
: 7/29/2021
(i
07048AEB65DB4ET ...
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,

partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
NYU Steinhardt| Partnership [for 8@A0@r Regidency  N/A No participat
DocuSigned by:
. 7/27/2021
Slusni Sante 125y
076993AE 1BFA4BO.
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
DocuSigned by:
. 7/28/2021
Brooke &
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Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business ¢
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.

None None None None None
DocuSigned by:
A e 7/27/2021
;‘DODEF7398€9486 ..
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
NA NA NA NA NA
DocuSigned by:
. . 7/27/2021
Jason (raine Barmns
EASOAAS3B795Z:2%
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business ¢
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.

None None None None None
DocuSigned by:
7/29/2021
Mapwell Fosentleal /
D798FA47033244B
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Steps
the school(s) business household holding an ¢
: : aken to
conducted interest in the avold
organization conflict:of
conducting business intorest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “None” iflapplicable. Do not leave this spac¢ blank.
None None None None None

DocuSigned by:
[/SQ/M 7/27/2021
CAAE987C1AAB486

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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lnwoong
Academy

FOR LEADERSHIP

Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

Annual June Board Meeting

Date and Time
Saturday June 19, 2021 at 12:00 PM

Trustees Present
B. Wilson (remote), J. Almonte, J. Harris, K. Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M.
Rosenthal, S. Mlynar, S. Santo, T. Almonte, V. Singh

Trustees Absent
B. Girley, E. Siminerio, J. Patrick

Guests Present
B. Mercedes, C. Reyes, J. Pichardo, J. Sandoval, M. Hackett, Michelle Hoover

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
T. Almonte called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Saturday Jun 19, 2021 at 12:05 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
Tomas started the meeting. Discussion about leadership development for school
leaders and system for progress and monitoring sub systems and data analysis of
school curriculum.

Goals for the school and staff for 2021-2022 school year were presented.

Last update: 7/28/2021 9:33:59 AM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10f2
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FOR LEADERSHIP

Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

May Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday May 18, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Girley (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. AlImonte (remote), J. Patrick (remote), K.
Smith (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote), S. Mlynar (remote), S. Santo (remote), V. Singh
(remote)

Trustees Absent
B. Wilson, J. Harris, K. Mangual, T. Almonte

Guests Present
B. Mercedes (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V. Hoekstra (remote),
val (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
V. Singh made a motion to Call the meeting to order.
J. AlImonte seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.

C. Approve Minutes
V. Singh made a motion to approve the minutes from April April Board Meeting on
04-20-21.
J. AlImonte seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

Last update: 7/28/2021 9:31:21 AM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10f3






Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School - May Board Meeting - Minutes - Tuesday May 18, 2021 at 7:00 PM

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 10:00 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
J. Almonte

Last update: 7/28/2021 9:31:21 AM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 30f3
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

April Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday April 20, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Wilson (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. Almonte (remote), J. Harris (remote), J.
Patrick (remote), K. Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote), S.
Santo (remote), T. Almonte (remote), V. Singh (remote)

Trustees Absent
B. Girley, S. Mlynar

Guests Present
C. Reyes (remote), J. Pichardo (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V.
Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems

A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
T. Almonte called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Apr 20, 2021 at 7:00 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
K. Mangual made a motion to approve the minutes from.
K. Smith seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

A. CEO Report

Last update: 5/18/2021 7:32:39 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2



Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School - April Board Meeting - Minutes - Tuesday April 20, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Communication was sent to the board of trustees about the elementary school
expansion and 5-year renewal. We are waiting for communication about the 5-
year renewal. We are anticipating a 4-year renewal. The elementary school
expansion is on standby.

The annual board retreat and dinner details will be shared soon with all board
members in the upcoming weeks.

B. Finance, Facilities and Fundraising
Inwood Student Business Accelerator Program: We are starting the pilot with
Alumni. We want to run a 12-week program with core mentors and advisors. The
board members are going to fundraise and recruit advisors for the program. We
are considering 5 alums. Communication will be sent to them this upcoming week
for an interview and application process.

Our lottery was on April 5th. We had a lot of applications, especially for ELLs. We
are hopeful to meet all of our numbers.

C. Academic Committee Report
Staff members are back in both buildings. We had staff orientation. Students
started coming into both MS/HS buildings. Each week day is a different grade and
teachers. Staff and students were so happy and energetic to be back together for
in-person learning.

D. HR Committee
lil. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
J. Sandoval

Last update: 5/18/2021 7:32:39 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 20f2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

March Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday March 16, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Girley (remote), B. Wilson (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. Almonte (remote), J.
Harris (remote), J. Patrick (remote), K. Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M.
Rosenthal (remote), S. Mlynar (remote), S. Santo (remote), T. Almonte (remote)

Trustees Absent
V. Singh

Guests Present
C. Reyes (remote), J. Pichardo (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V.
Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
T. Almonte called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Mar 16, 2021 at 7:00 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
K. Mangual made a motion to approve the minutes from February Board Meeting
on 02-23-21.
J. AlImonte seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Closing Items

Last update: 8/2/2021 10:14:00 AM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2



Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School - March Board Meeting - Minutes - Tuesday March 16, 2021 at 7:00 PM

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 10:00 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
E. Siminerio

Last update: 8/2/2021 10:14:00 AM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 20f2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

February Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday February 23, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Wilson (remote), C. Reyes (remote), J. Almonte (remote), J. Patrick (remote), K.
Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote), S. Mlynar (remote), V.
Singh (remote)

Trustees Absent
B. Girley, E. Siminerio, J. Harris, S. Santo, T. Aimonte

Guests Present
J. Pichardo (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V. Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance
B. Call the Meeting to Order
J. Patrick called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for

Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Feb 23, 2021 at 7:00 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
J. Almonte made a motion to approve the minutes from January Board Meeting on
01-19-21.
K. Mangual seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

A. CEO Report

Last update: 3/16/2021 8:10:09 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of3






Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School - February Board Meeting - Minutes - Tuesday February 23, 2021 at 7:00 PM

J. Sandoval

Last update: 3/16/2021 8:10:09 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 30of3
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

January Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday January 19, 2021 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Girley (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. Harris (remote), J. Patrick (remote), K.
Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote), S. Mlynar (remote), S.
Santo (remote), T. Almonte (remote), V. Singh (remote)

Trustees Absent
B. Wilson, J. Almonte

Guests Present
A. Weaver (remote), C. Reyes (remote), H. Pina (remote), J. Pichardo (remote), J.
Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V. Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
T. Almonte called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Jan 19, 2021 at 8:21 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
K. Mangual made a motion to approve the minutes from December Board Meeting
on 12-15-20.
M. Rosenthal seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

Last update: 7/29/2021 12:43:04 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

December Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday December 15, 2020 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Girley (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. AlImonte (remote), J. Harris (remote), J.
Patrick (remote), K. Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote), S.
Mlynar (remote), S. Santo (remote), V. Singh (remote)

Trustees Absent
B. Wilson, T. Almonte

Guests Present
C. Reyes (remote), J. Pichardo (remote), J. Sandoval (remote)
l. Opening ltems

A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
J. Patrick called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Dec 15, 2020 at 7:00 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
B. Girley made a motion to approve the minutes from November Board Meeting on
11-17-20.
J. Almonte seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

A. Academic Committee

Last update: 7/29/2021 12:41:35 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

November Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday November 17, 2020 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Girley (remote), B. Wilson (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. Almonte (remote), J.
Harris (remote), K. Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote), S.
Mlynar (remote), S. Santo (remote), T. Almonte (remote), V. Singh (remote)

Trustees Absent
J. Patrick

Guests Present
C. Reyes (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V. Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
T. Almonte called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Nov 17, 2020 at 7:00 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
J. Almonte made a motion to approve the minutes from October Board meeting
October Board Meeting on 10-20-20.
S. Santo seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

A. CEO Report (Executive Committee)

Last update: 12/15/2020 8:03:31 PM EST Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

October Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday October 20, 2020 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Girley (remote), B. Wilson (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. Almonte (remote), J.
Harris (remote), J. Patrick (remote), K. Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M.
Rosenthal (remote), S. Mlynar (remote), T. AlImonte (remote)

Trustees Absent
S. Santo

Guests Present
C. Reyes, J. Pichardo, J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett, V. Hoekstra, Vic Singh

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
T. Almonte called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Oct 20, 2020 at 7:00 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
J. Almonte made a motion to approve the minutes from September Board Meeting
on 09-15-20.
K. Mangual seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

A. Executive Committee

Last update: 12/1/2020 5:00:56 PM EST Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

September Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday September 15, 2020 at 6:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Girley (remote), B. Wilson (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. Almonte (remote), J.
Harris (remote), J. Patrick (remote), K. Mangual (remote), K. Smith (remote), M.
Rosenthal (remote), S. Mlynar (remote), S. Santo (remote), T. Almonte (remote)

Trustees Absent
None

Guests Present
C. Reyes (remote), J. Pichardo (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), Jamie Esperon (remote),
M. Hackett (remote), V. Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
T. Almonte called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Sep 15, 2020 at 6:50 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
B. Girley made a motion to approve the minutes from August Board Meeting on
08-18-20.
K. Mangual seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Committee Reports

Last update: 10/20/2020 8:44:17 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

August Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday August 18, 2020 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present

B. Wilson (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. Almonte (remote), K. Mangual (remote), K.
Smith (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote), S. Mlynar (remote), S. Santo (remote), T.
Almonte (remote)

Trustees Absent
B. Girley, J. Harris, J. Patrick

Guests Present
C. Reyes (remote), J. Pichardo (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V.
Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
E. Siminerio called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Aug 18, 2020 at 7:14 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
K. Mangual made a motion to approve the minutes from July Board Meeting on
07-21-20.
M. Rosenthal seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. CEO Report

Last update: 10/16/2020 8:20:47 AM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of2
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School

Minutes

July Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday July 21, 2020 at 7:00 PM

Trustees Present
B. Girley (remote), E. Siminerio (remote), J. AlImonte (remote), J. Harris (remote), K.
Mangual (remote), M. Rosenthal (remote)

Trustees Absent
B. Wilson, J. Patrick, K. Smith, S. Mlynar, T. Almonte

Guests Present
C. Reyes (remote), J. Pichardo (remote), J. Sandoval (remote), M. Hackett (remote), V.
Hoekstra (remote)

l. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order
E. Siminerio called a meeting of the board of trustees of Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School to order on Tuesday Jul 21, 2020 at 7:10 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
K. Smith made a motion to approve the minutes from June Board Retreat on 06-
20-20.
B. Girley seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. CEO Report

A. Intro to Shuvi Santo, Board Candidate

Last update: 8/18/2020 9:17:25 PM EDT Powered by BoardOnTrack 10of3






Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School - July Board Meeting - Minutes - Tuesday July 21, 2020 at 7:00 PM

E. Siminerio
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Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School ALL SCHOOL 2021-22 School

Calendar
Draft *subject to change by administration*

Wednesday Professional Development - 1 pm Student Dismissal

|Thursday, June 24, 2021 - Friday, July 9, 2021

|[Monday, July 12, 2021 — Friday, August 6, 2021

|Schoo| closed for ALL

IAL Summer School
(LT/Directors/Operations/Shared Staff will work
Monday thru Fridays 9am to 4pm)

Thursday, August 12, 2021 through Friday, August 13,
2021

Regents

Thursday, August 12, 2021 to Friday, August 20, 2021

First day for all returning Instructional Staff
Professional Development

|Monday, August 23, 2021

First Day of School all grades (5-12)

|Monday, September 6, 2021

|Wednesday, September 15, 2021

|I.ABOR DAY - SCHOOL CLOSED

|No School - All Staff PD

|Friday October 8, 2021 to October 11, 2021

|Monday, October 11, 2021

|Fal| Break

|INDIGENOUS PEOPLES DAY - SCHOOL CLOSED

[Tuesday, October 12, 2021

|Friday, October 29, 2021

Wednesday, November 24 through
Friday, November 26, 2021

|School Resumes for all Grades 5-12

|Student Advisory/Leadership Day

' THANKSGIVING BREAK - SCHOOL CLOSED

l
|Friday, December 10, 2021

PARENT TEACHER CONFERENCE

Thursday, December 23, 2021 through
Friday, December 31, 2021

WINTER BREAK - SCHOOL CLOSED

|Monday, January 3, 2022

All Staff PD - No School for Students

|Monday, January 17, 2022

|MLK DAY - SCHOOL CLOSED
]

Tuesday, January 25, 2022 through Friday, January
28, 2022

||-|s REGENT week

Monday, February 21, 2022 through
Friday, February 25, 2022

‘MID-WINTER BREAK - SCHOOL CLOSED
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PARENT TEACHER CONFERENCE

Friday, March 18, 2022

Monday, April 4, 2022
hursday, April 14, 2022 through SPRING BREAK - SCHOOL CLOSED
Friday, April 22, 2022

Friday, May 27, 2022 to Monday, May 30, 2022 MEMORIAL BREAK - SCHOOL CLOSED

uesday, May 31, 2022 to Friday, June 4, 2022 FAMILY WEEK OF SERVICE

Friday, June 17, 2022 MS Graduation @ 4pm
Monday, June 20, 2022 Buneteenth Holiday School Closed
LAST DAY OF SCHOOL GRADE 5-12

Tuesday, June 21, 2022
Wednesday, June 22, 2022 rls Graduation @ 6pm
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Wednesday, Professional Development Schedule

Date

PD

August 25, 2021

September 1, 2021

September 8, 2021

September 15, 2021

September 22, 2021

September 29, 2021

October 6, 2021

October 13, 2021

October 20, 2021

October 27, 2021

November 3, 2021

November 10, 2021

November 17, 2021

December 1, 2021

December 8, 2021

December 15, 2021

December 22, 2021

January 5, 2022

January 12, 2022

January 19, 2022

January 26, 2022

February 2, 2022
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February 9, 2022

February 23, 2022

March 2, 2022

March 9, 2022

March 16, 2022

March 23, 2022

March 30, 2022

April 6, 2022

April 13, 2022

April 27, 2022

May 4, 2022

May 11, 2022

May 18, 2022

May 25, 2022

June 1, 2022

June 8, 2022

June 15, 2022

June 22, 2022
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m Certificate of Occupancy

Buildings

CO Number: 123325142F

This certifies that the premises described herein conforms substantially to the approved plans and specifications and to the
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document or a copy shall be available for inspection at the
building at all reasonable times.

A.

Borough: Manhattan Block Number: Certificate Type: Final

Address: 411 WEST 204TH STREET Lot Number(s): Effective Date:  01/10/2020

Building Identification Number (BIN): ||

Building Type:
Altered

This building is subject to this Building Code: 1968 Code

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb.

Construction classification: (Prior to 1968 Code designation)
Building Occupancy Group classification (2014/2008 Code)

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: None

No. of stories: || Height in feet: [JJj No. of dwelling units: 1

Fire Protection Equipment:
Fire alarm system

Type and number of open spaces:
None associated with this filing.

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations:
None

Borough Comments: None

(AS

Borough Commissioner Commissioner
DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE



Certificate of Occupancy

Buildings
CO Number: 123325142F
Permissible Use and Occupancy
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations.
1 Building ’
Maximum |Live load | Code Dwelling or
Floor persons |lbs per occupancy |Rooming | Zoning
From To permitted |sq. ft. group Units use group | Description of use

(AS

Borough Commissioner Commissioner
END OF DOCUMENT 123325142/000 1/10/2020 10:10:30 AM
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9 Metro Tech Center, 3rd Floor

\5 U BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION
U Brooklyn, NY 11201

mina.soliman@fdny.nyc.gov

To: John Raine, R.A.
Borough Commissioner
280 Broadway, 3rd Fl
New York, N.Y 10007
From: Mina Soliman PE
Date: 07/27/2020
Record ID: [
Date Submitted: 5/1/2020
Premises: 3896 10 Avenue Manhattan NY 10034(-1844)

BIN: —

Fire Protection Plan

Letter of Approval

Re: Location: 3896 10 Avenue Manhattan NY 10034(-1844)
Buildings Dept: 122972293

Occupancy Classification:E 5 or more persons at any time for educational purposes
Dear Commissioner John Raine, R.A.

The Fire Protection Plan submitted for the above application has been examined, and found to meet or exceed the
minimum requirements for Fire Protection Plan, as set forth by Article 109 of NYC General Administrative Provisions of
Construction Codes.

This letter however, does not waive the requirements of any other agencies having jurisdiction.

By order of,
Chief of Fire Prevention

Sincerely,

Mina Soliman PE

Record ID: 2020-EPPGFP-000363-PLAN Page: 1 of 1
Job #: 122972293
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Melanie La Rocca

Commissioner

Lisa Amoia, RA.

Deputy Borough Commissioner

lamoia@buildings.nyc.qov

280 Broadway,

3rd FI.

New York, NY 10007

www.nyc.gov/buildings
212-393-2019 Tel

646-500-6170 Fax

build safe

live safe

RENEWAL

DATE: June 10, 2021
BLOCK: 2223

LOT: 16

PREMISES: 3896 10" Avenue
BOROUGH: MANHATTAN

SUBJECT: Temp Use Permit
Inwood Academy Leadership Charter School (High School)

This is in response to your revised request received June 10, 2021 for Inwood
Academy Leadership Charter School (High School) pursuant to section AC 28-
111.

The Department has no objection to said use, provided it complies with the criteria
as stated in your request letter. Therefore, this letter serves as permit for the use as
specified above for the following time period: June 11, 2021 through September 10,
2021, Monday through Saturday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Please see attached
letter for additional details.

In addition, a fire watch will be provided by four (4) Fireguards during the hours of
operation.

If this building is hereafter altered or its use changes, an application for such alteration
work or change of use must be filed, and a Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued
pursuant to Article 118, Chapter 1 of Title 28 of the Administrative Code of the City of
New York.

Please contact me if you have any additional questions or concerns regarding this
matter. For more specific property information, please visit the “Building Information
System” on our web site: www.nyc.gov/buildings.

Sincerely,
SO NER

FOR Lisa Amoia, RA

Deputy Borough Commissioner
Manhattan

LA/dmw
Attachment(s)

Cc: Temp Use File



Spectorgroup

June 10, 2021

Commissioner John Raine
NYC Department of Buildings
280 Broadway, 3™ Floor

New York, NY 10007

Re: 3896 10th Avenue
DOB TUP
ALT-1 #122972293

Dear Commissioner Raine:

We are writing to you on behalf of Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School and the renewal of
the TUP for the building noted above and to provide the following updates.

» We passed our DOB Construction inspection on 03/12/2021 and obtained Final Construction
Sign off.

* We passed our FDNY Fire Alarm inspection and obtained the Letter of Approval on
05/29/2020.

* We passed our Standpipe inspection and obtained SD Sign off on 10/22/2019.

* We passed our Sprinkler inspection and obtained SP Sign off on 02/24/2020.

* We passed our Boiler inspection and obtained BL Sign off on 04/03/2019.

» We are currently in the process of updating the Schedule B under ALT2 # 123196683. Once
the schedule B is approved, we will request our plumbing inspection and sign off. With this
Plumbing sign off, we will submit for the Initial TCO review and Approval.

If you may have any questions or comments please do not hesitate to contact our office.

Sincerely,

Scott E. Spector

Seal:

183 Madison Avenue New York NY 10016 | www.spectorgroup.com | T:212 599 0055 F: 212 599 1043
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Job Number

DEPT OF BLDGS123152462

— - Y MEIKUIEUH LENTEK 3KD FLOOR - BROOKLYN, N.Y 11201-3857

i3t
ol
“New York,
BLDGS DEPT APPL. NO.-
3896 10 AVE ASSOC ACCOUNT NUMBER:

06/29/20

200 PARK AVE S DATE OF APPROVAL:

3896 10 AVE NEW YORK }

LETTER OF APPROVAL

THIS LETTER OF APPROVAL COVERS THE SYSTEM INDICATED BELOW. IT IS
SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND AUDIT.
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Academy

FOR LEADERSHIP

June 3, 2021

Commissioner Rebholz, R.A.
NYC Department of Buildings
280 Broadway, 3rd Floor

New York, NY 10007

Re: 3896 10 Avenue, New York, NY 10034
Inwood Academy Leadership Charter School (High School)

Dear Commissioner Rebholz

I am respectfully requesting a renewal of the Temporary Use Permit granted for Inwood Academy for
Leadership Charter School New High School location at 3896 10® Avenue. The current permit expires on
June 6, 2021. I am requesting a 90-day renewal to keep the school operational. It is important to renew
this as we are a High School that is serving 500 students and providing hybrid programming. The
pandemic has slowed things down but its so important for our scholars to get the necessary support they
need, and by ensuring the High School is operational is key. Below is the list the progress we’ve made so
far in the attempt to obtain the TCO.

e We pass our DOB Construction inspection on 03/12/2021 and obtained Final Construction Sign
off.

We passed our FDNY Fire Alarm inspection and obtained the Letter of Approval on 05/29/2020.
We passed our Standpipe inspection and obtained SD Sign off on 10/22/2019.

We passed our Sprinkler inspection and obtained SP Sign off on 02/24/2020.

We passed our Boiler inspection and obtained BL Sign off on 04/03/2019.

We are currently in the process of updating the Schedule B under ALT2 # 123196683. Once the
schedule B is approved, we will request our plumbing inspection and sign off. with this
Plumbing sign off, we will submit for the Initial TCO review and Approval.

As stipulated in the Temp Use Permit the school will remain operational from Monday —Saturday, 7:00
a.m. to 7:00 pm. In addition, a fire watch will be provided by four (4) Fireguards during the hours of
operation.

Your assistance with this approval is greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

e

Jenny Pichardo

COO/CFO

Inwood Academy for Leadership Charter School
347-501-1414
Jenny.pichardo@inwoodacademy.org

Inwood Academy for Leadership
3896 10" Avenue New York, NY 10034
Phone: 212-304-0103 Fax: 212-304-0370 Website: www.inwoodacademy.org




Buildings

AL-1
CO-Alt-1 Inspection Up to 4 Total Levels

INSPECTION REPORT

1. TYPE OF INSPECTION: CO-Alt-1 Inspection Up to 4 Total Levels

2. RECORD INFORMATION

Record Type:  DOB/Permit/AL-1/NA

Record (Job/Permit/Application) #: 12297229301AL

Requestor Name: Satish Patel

Requestor Phone Number:

3. INSPECTION INFORMATION

Inspection Result:  Pass-Final

Inspection Date: 03/12/21 Inspection Time:

Inspector Badge#: 2271

4. OBJECTIONS

Failed Guidesheet Item Result Certifiable? Floor No. Comments

5. APPROVAL

Inspection Final Result: Pass-Final

Inspection Final Approval Date: 03/12/21

Inspection Final Approval Time: 01:54 PM

Supervisor Badge #: 2271
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Lisa Amoia, RA.
Deputy Borough Gommissioner 1
lamoia@buildings.nyc.qov BLOCK: 2223

FREMIDED! SUY0 TU™ Avenue

www.nyc.govibuildings
212-393-2019 Tel BOROUGH: MANHATTAN

mAs BEAR B4R E_

Please contact me if you have any additional questions or concerns regarding this
matter. For more specific property information, please visit the “Building Information
System” on our web site: www.nyc.gov/buildings.

Sincerely,

AR N
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